
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – AUGUST 31, 2010 

WATER FOUNTAINS AND AERATION DEVICES  
IN STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES 
WARDS 2 AND 3 

Recommendation 
 
The Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works recommends: 
 
1. That staff proceed with an on-site technical feasibility assessment for the installation of 

energy efficient water fountains to be installed in the existing storm water management ponds 
located at the northeast corner of Rutherford Road and Napa Valley Avenue in Block 53, and 
at the northwest corner of Rutherford Road and Weston Road in Block 39; and, 

 
2. That subject to sufficient funding being approved in the Public Works Department 2011 Water 

and Wastewater operating budget for the annual operating costs  associated with each 
fountain, and the confirmation of the feasibility of the installations, the cost for the installations 
be funded from Capital Budget Project Number PW-2001-08; and, 

 
3. That future candidate ponds for water fountain installation be identified and fountains installed 

through the development approvals process.  
 
Contribution to Sustainability  

  
While considering available water fountain models for this type of application, priority will be given 
to energy efficient units with minimal long-term maintenance and operational costs. Solar 
powered devices will also be considered along with limited daily hours of operation.  
 
Economic Impact 
 
The implementation, operation and maintenance of water fountains within storm water 
management ponds on a permanent basis will impact current and future operating and capital 
budgets.  
 
Based on the results of the Block 10 Sugarbush Pond Water Fountain Pilot Project, the total 
capital cost to purchase and install one fountain unit is estimated at $50,000. While the yearly 
operating and maintenance costs are estimated at $18,000 excluding life-cycle replacement 
costs.    
 
The Public Works Operating Budget will need to be increased by approximately $25,000 per new 
fountain to provide for the associated annual operating, maintenance, storage and life-cycle 
costs.  Funding will be requested through the 2011 Water and Wastewater Operating Budget 
process. 
 
An economic adjustment factor has been applied to update the above noted cost estimates.   
 
Approved Capital Project No. PW-2001-08 allocates initial funding in the amount of $180,000 for 
the installation of water fountains/aeration devices in assumed storm water management facilities 
throughout the City.   
  
Communications Plan 

Residents / landowners immediately adjacent to the subject storm water management ponds will 
be notified by staff in advance of the water fountain installations.   



Purpose 
 
On June 23, 2008, Item 35, Report No. 36, of the Committee of the Whole was received by 
Council. This report (included as Attachment No. 1) presented the findings and conclusions of the 
City’s Sugarbush Pond Water Fountain Pilot Project. The report also recommended that Council 
provide direction to staff with respect to the installation of electrically driven water fountains in the 
assumed storm water management ponds located at Rutherford Road and Napa Valley Avenue 
in Block 53 and at Rutherford Road and Weston Road in Block 39.  
 
In response to the above noted report, Council adopted the following recommendations from the 
Committee of the Whole: 
 

“That this matter be referred back to staff for further investigation and to explore the 
opportunity to fine tune the criteria for determining the placement of water fountains in 
assumed storm water management ponds; and 
 
That staff explore other cost effective measures for other aeration devices.” 
 

The purpose of this report is to respond to the above noted Council resolution. 
 
Background – Analysis and Options 

 
Subsequent to the preparation of the above noted report to Committee of the Whole in June of 
2008, a recent desktop review of the City’s current inventory of assumed storm water 
management ponds was completed by staff. The following criteria was reviewed, reaffirmed and 
subsequently used to re-assess which ponds may be good candidates for the installation of water 
fountains. 
 

1. Aesthetic value/benefits; 

2. Visibility in the community; 

3. Overall public safety; 

4. Depth of permanent water pool in the pond; 

5. Existing silt build up in the pond; 

6. Availability of hydro electricity to the pond area; 

7. Feasibility of bringing a power supply to the pond site; 

8. Accessibility for installation, operation and maintenance; 

9. Potential disruption in water quality functionality of the pond;  

10. Susceptibility to vandalism; and 

11. Susceptibility to disturbance to neighboring residential areas due to increases in 
noise or other disruptive factors. 

 
Additional details pertaining to the above noted criteria and the logistical and technical challenges 
associated with the installation of water fountains in existing / assumed ponds are provided in the 
Council meeting extract of June 23, 2008 (Item 35, Report No. 36, of the Committee of the 
Whole) included as Attachment No. 1. 
 
Based on the results of the desktop review, it has been reconfirmed that the existing storm water 
management ponds located at the northeast corner of Rutherford Road and Napa Valley Avenue 
within the Woodbridge Expansion Area (Block 53) and at the northwest corner of Rutherford Road 
and Weston Road within Vellore Village (Block 39) are good candidate ponds for the installation 
of water fountains. Given both facilities have been operational for a number of years, staff will 
complete an on-site technical feasibility assessment of each pond in order to physically confirm 



existing conditions in and around the facility and before proceeding with the purchase and 
installation of fountains. 

 
Cost Effective Aeration Devices: 
 
Given the significant costs and limited application potential associated with operating electrically 
driven water fountains, more cost effective aeration devices such as wind mills, lake lung units or 
simply (wind driven) water agitator type units offer less expensive and more practical options for 
providing aeration to stagnant water. 
 
These types of aeration devices only serve to maintain movement of the water in the pond but do 
not produce a spray of water like the water fountain. Once installed, they may remain in operation 
year round and need not be taken out during the winter season.  
 
The most cost effective option for aeration to storm ponds is the use of wind driven agitator type 
units. A current estimate of the capital costs associated with the supply and installation of these 
units is approximately $7,500. The annual operating cost is approximately $1,800. 
 
Wind driven aeration devices (agitators) may be installed and operated in storm ponds as 
required on a site-specific basis and where funding remains available and has been approved in 
accordance with yearly budget deliberations. 
 
Relationship to Vaughan Vision 2020/Strategic Plan 
 
In consideration of the strategic priorities related to Vaughan Vision 2020, minimizing the 
placement of water fountains to visually enhance and promote the City of Vaughan in highly 
visible areas adjacent to arterial roads and/or within key district centre areas will assist with: 
 

 Leading and promoting environmental sustainability; 
 Enhancing productivity, cost effectiveness and innovation; 
 Ensuring financial sustainability; and 
 Maintaining assets and infrastructure. 
 

The installation of water fountains in storm water management ponds is not consistent with the 
priorities previously set by Council, additional resources will need to be allocated and approved. 
 
Regional Implications 
 
There will be no Regional implications resulting from the adoption of this report.  
 
Conclusion 
 
It is anticipated the City will own and operate approximately 200 storm water management ponds 
in the next 20 years. Given the capital, operating and maintenance costs associated with water 
fountains, their use should be minimized and limited to installations in key district centre areas 
throughout the City. 
 
The on-going operating and maintenance costs associated with water fountains may be 
minimized by selecting energy efficient and/or solar powered units, and by limiting daily hours of 
operation.  
 
From a technical perspective, the existing assumed ponds within the Woodbridge Expansion 
Area (Blocks 53) and Vellore Village (Block 39) are good candidates for the installation of water 
fountains. In addition, these ponds are highly visible to the surrounding residential communities, 
are located adjacent to Regional corridors, and will visually enhance the areas and promote the 
City.  



 
Where possible and in order to further minimize initial capital cost exposure to the City, it is 
recommended that potential candidate ponds for water fountain installation be identified and 
installation be done through the development approvals process. Long term operating and 
maintenance costs will continue to increase as additional water fountains are installed throughout 
the City. 
 
Attachments  
 
1.  Extract from Council Meeting Minutes of June 23, 2008 

 
Report prepared by: 

 
Saad Yousaf, Storm Drainage Engineer, Ext. 8251 
Michael Frieri, Manager of Engineering Planning & Studies, Ext. 8729 

 
 Respectfully submitted,    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Bill Robinson, P. Eng.     Andrew Pearce, C.E.T. 
 Commissioner of Engineering    Director of Development /  
 And Public Works     Transportation Engineering 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Brian T. Anthony, CRS-S, C. Tech      
 Director of Public Works      
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